QA-79 .
Upper Heathworth ‘ : mid-19th century

" Burrisville vicinity

Private

Upper Heathworth is one of the largest and most
imposing 19th century houses in the county. The main
block combines a side hall, double parlor plan with
three story height and shallow hip roof, a composition
that was widely used on the Eastern Shore in the
mid-19th century. A pair of rectangular two story
flanking wings, one original, the other an early
addition, combine to transform the house into a massive
if somewhat awkward composition. An original dentil
block cornice and later Victorian porches serve to
relieve the heaviness of the building somewhat, but
the overall feeling of simplicity and size remains
dominant on the exterior. The interior of the main
house is almost equally plain, with a Victorian stair
and a simple mantel the only surviving evidence of
19th century trim. Notable outbuildings include a
dairy with pyramidal overhanging roof and a post-and-
plank meat house.
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Adenda

Upper Heathworth was demolished in the late
summer of 1978, not long after the survey of the house
was completed. Some of the materials were salvaged
by the present owners, who plan to construct a new
house on the sight. The dairy building and the

post-and-plank meat house were not destroyed.
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CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
~—-EXCELLENT —_DETERIORATED —UNALTERED X ORIGINAL SITE
X _coop —-RUINS X_ALTERED —MOVED DATE
—FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Upper Heathworth is loéated on Spaniard Neck,
overlooking the Chester River. The house surveys
a broad sweep of agricultural land that slopes down
to the river in_front, and two small coves on either
side. There are a number ofvsmall outbuildings, a
granary, and several barns to the east and northeast
of the house. A long driveway flanked by an allee
of pine trees approaches from the southeast, and
terminates in a circle in front of the house.

The three-part house is of frame construction,
consisting of a three story central block with a
hip roof flanked by two story gable roof wings.
A pair of flush brick chimneys rise on the northeast
gable wall of the main house, and single flush
chimneys rise at the gable end of each wing. The
central portion of the house is three bays wide
and two rooms deep, and dates to the mid-nineteenth
century. The wings are four bays wide and only
one room deep. The northeast wing appears to be
original, while the southwest wing was added soon
after the original house was completed. These wings
are shifted forward, so that they are flush with the

river facade of the main house. There are one

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY



Bl SIGNIFICANCE - QA

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
""" PREMISTORIC  __ARCHEOLUGY-PREHISTORIC ~ __COMMUNITY PLANNING —-LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE ~ __RELIGION
—1400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC _—_CONSERVATION —LAW —_SCIENCE
—1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS _ LITERATURE —SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 X_ARCHITECTURE —EDUCATION —_MILITARY —SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 —ART __ENGINEERING —Music —THEATER
X1800-1899 —COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  __PHILOSOPHY —TRANSPORTATION
—1800- —COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT —CTHER (SPECIFY)
—_INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES ) BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
Upper Heathworth is one of the largest and

most imposing 19th century houses surviving in the
county. The main block combines a side hall,
double parlour plan with three story height and
shallow hip roof, a composition that was widely
used on the Eastern Shore in the mid-19th century.

- Although only one of the two-story wings is
original, the other was added at an early date, and
together they transform a relatively simple three
story house into a massive if somewhat awkward
composition. An original dentil-block cornice and
later Victorian porches serve to relieve the
heaviness of the building somewhat, but the
overall feeling of simplicity and size remains
dominant on the exterior, The interior of the
main house is almost equally plain, with a
Victorian stair and a simple mantel the only

Burviving evidence of 19th century trim.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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7.1 DESCRIPTION

story porches with Doric columns and scrolled fretwork
railings on both facades of the main house, and similar
porches .with éiagonal lath railings on the southeast
facade of each wing. ‘

The river facade of the main house has a large
double door with sidelights and transom in the south-
west bay and largé six—over—six_windows in the center
and . northeast bay. There are three six—ovef—six‘
windows on each of the upper floors. The second floor
windows are the same size as the first floor windows.
The third floor windows are the same width, but are
considerably shorter in height.

The southeast facade, ‘facing the driveway, is
identical to thg river facade eécept that the entrance
consists of a siﬁgle door with a three-light transom,
but no sidelights. |

There are no Openinéé in the gable walls o£ the
main house, but‘seams in tﬁe siding and and evidence
inside indicates'that there Weré windows on each floor
in the southeast bay of the sou\hwest gable.

The southwest wing is more carefully ordered than
the northe€ast wing. The river facade has four six-

over-six windows on each floor. On the land facade,
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7.2 DESCRIPTION

there are doors in the second and fourth bays from the
left, and windows in the first and third.bays. Four
six-over-six windows are symmetrically arranged on the
second floor. There .are no opénings‘in the gable wall
‘of the gouthwest wing;

The river facade of the northeast . wing is almost
ideﬁtical, but one window has been omitted on the first
floor, in the second bay from the right, and a seam
below the thifd window suggests it wés once a door.

The land facade is also similar, with doors in the
second and fourth bays, but the latter of these doors
vis offset to the left, placing it right next to a
winéow. Both of the irregularities in this wing can
be attributed to two winder stairs inside. There are
two two;over-foﬁf windows flanking the chimney in the
upper gable of this wing.

Based on framing evidence, it would appear that
the.northeast wing is briginal, and that the southwest
wing was added at an early date, All three sections
of the house have original, unhiaded horizontal weather-
boarding and a flat modillion blbgk cornice consisting
of two different size blocks altefnating against a

‘

wide fascia board.

. e
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7.3 DESCRIPTION

The house rests on a brick foundation. A
covered bﬁlkhead entrance on the southeast cérner of
the northéast géble allows access to a cellar under
the main house.

The interior plan of the main house coﬁsists of
a side hall with two parlours. A steep stair rises
from the southeést corner ‘of the hall along the south-
west gable of the house. This is not the original
stair,. as it'cuts acréss the location of the now-

" removed éable windows. The lower part of the first
floor window frame remains visible in the closet under
the stairs, and ghosts of the second and third floor
" windows are evident in the interior plaster. The
location of the original stair is uncertain, but the
northwest end ;%'the hall seems the most likely

- possibhility. The present stair consists of an oven
strihg carriage decorated by scrolled brackets on
eaéh step, with turned walnut ne&els, walnut rail,
and turned'oék balusters. fbe railing has evidéntly
been éhanged, as the tenoﬂs'éf earlier newels remain
in each floor, where the newelg\were cut off and
replaced. The turned drops from these newels remain
in the ceiling of the first and second floor.

e




QA-T9

CONTINUATION SHEET

7.4 DESCRIPTION

Other alterations are also evident on the first
floor. The wall between the two parlours haé been
removed, Creating one lérgé room wiﬁh two fireplaces.
The fireplace in the room facing the ri&er has been
,blbcked and fitted for a stove, the other fireplace
remains orpen. The mantel has been removed from the
former, while thé'latter retains a'simpie 19th cen£ury
mantel, A single door gives access to the wing. -

The hall bhas alsé been altered.. Seams in the
‘plaéter walls and ceiling‘indicate the hall was once
diﬁided, and the presence of two bolts in the wali
suggest there was a pilastered arch to divide the two
‘spaces. As mentioned, the stair has been moved, and
a small bath has been inserted below the second floor
landing. A laféé doorway opens off the hall into the
southwest wing. i

ﬁtched into the glass of one of the river facade
sidelights is the name "J. F. Reeves, Jr. 1860".
The secoﬁd floo; repeaté\the first floor plan, but

with a small, unheated room woxked into the northwest

end of the stair hall. There are small fireplaces in
.each.of the two chambers, and doors leading to the

second floor of each wing.

%o
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7.5 DESCRIPTION

The third floor is identical to the second floor,
but the two larger chambers were heated with stoves,
having no fireplaces. -

The northeast wing is divided into two rooms on
the first floor. The northeast room has a large
exposed brick fireplace on the center of the gable
wall, and a winder "stair in the corner to the right of
the fireplace. The inner room hés a false fireplace
on the center of the southwést wall, and a winder stair
in-the'northeast corner of the room; Several stepg
lead un to a door leading into the front parlour of
the main house. |

The second floor of this wing is divided into three
rooms and a narrow hall. A steep ladder-stair leads to
a*largelloft room with pléstered walls and ceiling.

The southwestAwing consists of a single large
room_on-the first floor with a fireplaqe on the center
of the southwest gable wall. This wall has been paneled
in recent times, but ratherbgrudely. It appears-that

\ :
-raised panel doors were cut up and reused as wall
N
. N\ .
paneling, and other panels were ‘salvaged and set into
modern two-inch frames to serve as cupboard doors. .

.Althdugh reasonably convincing from the far end of the

wﬂv-'
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7.6 DESCRIPTION

room, closer examination betrays the horizontal seams
of the lock rails breaking across the vertical Styles
of the doors, cfeating a most unsettling effect,
The-interior trim of the house‘is relatively
éimple. Door and window architraves are rabbetted,
but otherwise plain. The mantles that remain are also

rather plain and uﬁdistinguished.
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7.7 DESCRIPTION

Dairy

To the east of the main house, directly behind the
'noréﬁeast wing, there is a small frame daify with a
large overhanging pyramidal roof. The dairy building
is approximately eight feet sgquare, with a beaded
‘batten dobr centered on the northwest facade, toward
the house, ana a single six-over-six window centered
on each side wall. It sits on a brick foundation. that
encloses a springhouse or ice-house,'with access through
a hinged trap door in the floor.

The roof overhangs about four feet on each side,
and is supported by saquared, chamfered postsvéét in
the 'ground. The roof is covered with wood shingles, and
surmounted by a-weathered finial. xterior siding consists
of ﬁnbeaded hbrizontal weatherboards secured with machine

nails. All visible framing is circular sawn and secured

with machine nails.




AT,

QA-79

CONTINUATION SHEET

7.8 DESCRIPTION

Smokehouse

'The smokehouse is located to the east of the house,
and is the first of a line of more recent farm buildings
that lie in a line roughly parallel to the driveway.

This building is of post and plank construction,
approximately twelve feet wide by fourteen feet long.
The exterior is covered with horizontal beaded siding
on the upper gable and Qertical unbeaded siding on the
lower gables and side walls. The gable roof is approxi-

mately 45 degrees in pitch, and covered with wood

-shingles. Beaded, tavered rakeboards and a box cornice

with beaded fascia board remain intact. The door is
located on the center of the southeast facade. The door
ié'gone, but one iron pintel remains on the front face
of the right doof jamb.

Although this building is constructed in similar
fashion to other nost and plank buildings in this area,
it is unicgue in its use of‘slab—wood or kerf-wood for
the plank walls and roof. fhe corner posts, plates, and
rafters are all hewn or pit ségn, and show a certain
amount of care in construction.\'The planks and several

of the intermediate posts, on the other hand, are all

pieces of kerf-wood left over after logs are cut into
e '
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7.9 DESCRIPTION

planks. The rounded face is on the inside, and has been
notched ouf to allow the intermediate posts to lie flat
against them, Oﬁher piéceé of kerf-ﬁood have been used
for nailers in the roof. They are laid;across the
.rafters in a horizontal position with the rounded face
down, and notched out so they lie flat on the rafters.
One-inch boards have been nailed in a vertical position
on top of the nailers, and the shingles are nailed to
the boards. |

The éombination of kerf-wood members and machine
nailed collars suggests a mid-nineteenth century éate

for this building.
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8.1 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Two outbuildings of particular note have also
survived. A small frame dairy with an overhanging
pyramidal roof is located to the east of the main
house, and a post-and-plank meat house is located
at the eastern edge of the yard, adjoining the more

recent farm buildings.
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